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The National Indigenous Australians Agency acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of country 
throughout Australia and acknowledges their continuing connection to land, waters and community. We pay our 
respects to the people, the cultures and the elders past, present and emerging. 

 

 

 
 
 
 

From:    
Sent: Thursday, 18 May 2023 2:56 PM 
To:   (Protected)  @niaa.gov.au>;  @official.niaa.gov.au> 
Cc: Arnhem Groote Agreements <ArnhemGrooteAgreements@official.niaa.gov.au> 
Subject: Potential out of scope ABA project ‐ Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal Corporation [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 
Hi   and  , 
 
Thanks to you both for your time yesterday.  
 
I’m briefing my RM in preparation for a meeting with the GM.  
 

, after you have met with legals can you please give me an update on their advice re Djigardaba Enterprise 
Aboriginal Corporation and whether or not the approved project is in scope, and next steps? 
 
Thanks in advance, 
 

 | Assistant Director 
Regional Strategies and Projects 
Arnhem Land & Groote Eylandt Region | Central Group 

National Indigenous Australians Agency 
p.   m.    @offical.niaa.gov.au 
Level 6 Jacana House, 39‐41 Wood Street Darwin NT 0800 | PO Box 9932 DARWIN NT 0801 
w. niaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au 
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OFFICIAL  
PDR: EC23-001886

NATIONAL INDIGENOUS AUSTRALIANS AGENCY

OFFICIAL  

To: Regional Manager, Arnhem Land and Groote Eylandt
ABORIGINALS BENEFIT ACCOUNT (ABA) – APPROVAL TO COMMIT FUNDS 
AND AGREEMENT TO PROPOSED PROJECT SCHEDULE – DJIGARDABA 
ENTERPRISE ABORIGINAL CORPORATION FOR PART ACQUISITION OF 
KAKADU TOURISM (GLC) PTY LIMITED ACN 087 366 336 AND GAGUDJU 
LODGE COOINDA TRUST

Recommendations - that you:

1. Sign the Approval for the Commitment of Relevant Money form at Attachment A 
to formally commit funding totalling $1,500,000.00 (GST exclusive) for the ABA 
project Part Acquisition of Kakadu Tourism (GLC) Pty Limited (ACN 087 366 336) 
and Gagudju Lodge Cooinda Trust to be delivered by Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal 
Corporation.

Signed / Not Signed

2. Agree to the proposed Project Schedule for this project at Attachment B, the Head 
Agreement at Attachment C, the Purposes Deed at Attachment D and the Specific 
Securities Deed at Attachment E.

Agreed / Not Agreed

3. Sign the letter at Attachment F to provide Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal Corporation 
with the Project Schedule for signature.

Signed / Not Signed

4. Note that, if you consider this matter should not proceed as proposed, on the basis that 
the grant proposal should not be approved, the matter must be referred to the Minister 
for determination, together with your reasons for proposing the grant be declined.

Noted

GERRIT WANGANEEN Date: 11 December 2023

Comments:

Thank you.

NIAA
Ms Bellenger 
Mr 
Wanganeen 
Mr Dyer
Mr Hendry
Mr Maher
 
Grants Policy
IASAMO
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OFFICIAL  

OFFICIAL  
 2

Key Points:

1. On 30 November 2022, approval was given to negotiate funding conditions with 
Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal Corporation for a proposed grant from the ABA Special 
Account to the value of $1,500,000.00 (GST exclusive) for the Acquisition 
of 48% of the Gagadju Lodge Cooinda Hotel and Yellow Waters Cruise Business 
in Kakadu National Park (refer MS22-000532 at Attachment G).

2. The Agency has negotiated funding of $1,500,000.00 with Djigardaba Enterprise 
Aboriginal Corporation and all specified conditions have been met.

3. The proposed Project Schedule at Attachment B has been developed reflecting 
the negotiated funding amount and conditions.

4. The Agency engaged an external lawyer to provide advice and assist in drafting 
the Project Schedule and Specific Security Deed. Their advice has been incorporated into 
the Project Schedule.

5. This legal advice included a requirement for Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal 
Corporation to provide signed but undated share and unit transfer forms prior 
to the Agency releasing funding for the acquisition. Promptly following completion 
of the acquisition, Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal Corporation must provide the Agency 
with:
a. The original share and unit certificates to be issued to Djigardaba Enterprise 

Aboriginal Corporation; and
b. Copies of the updated share and unit registers, showing Djigardaba Enterprise 

Aboriginal Corporation as the registered owner of the relevant securities.
6. The ARA rating determines the mandatory controls to be included in the grant agreement. 

The standard controls for a High risk activity include bi-annual payments tied 
to acceptable bi-annual performance reports, bi-annual site visits, a project budget 
incorporated into the grant agreement, and an annual audited grant expenditure report. 
These controls have been included in the Project Schedule.

7. The proposed Project Schedule provides for two payments;
a. The initial payment to be released within 20 days of all the following occurring:

i. Execution of the Project Agreement, Purposes Deed and Security Documentation; 
and

ii. Provision to the Agency of signed but undated share and unit transfer forms.
b. The final payment due to be released on the submission and acceptance 

of a satisfactory Performance Report by the Provider as per the Project Schedule.

8. This brief seeks your approval to formally commit the funds required for this project 
by signing the Approval to Commit Relevant Monies form provided at Attachment A, 
your agreement to the proposed Project Schedule at Attachment B, the proposed Head 
Agreement at Attachment C, the Purposes Deed at Attachment D, the Specific Securities 
Deed at Attachment E, and your signature on the letter at Attachment F to provide these 
documents to Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal Corporation for signature.

9. You have authority under the NIAA Financial Delegations to approve the commitment 
of funds for the project and to execute the funding agreement when the documentation 
has been signed by Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal Corporation.
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ATTACHMENTS

ATTACHMENT A APPROVAL TO COMMIT RELEVANT MONEY

ATTACHMENT B PROPOSED PROJECT SCHEDULE

ATTACHMENT C PROPOSED HEAD AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENT D PROPOSED PURPOSES DEED

ATTACHMENT E PROPOSED SECURITY DEED

ATTACHMENT F LETTER TO DJIGARDABA ENTERPRISE ABORIGINAL 
CORPORATION

ATTACHMENT G MS22-000532 - COPY OF APPROVAL TO NEGOTIATE BRIEF 
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OFFICIAL  
PDR: EC23-002155

NATIONAL INDIGENOUS AUSTRALIANS AGENCY

OFFICIAL  

To: A/g Regional Manager, Arnhem Land and Groote Eylandt Region
ABORIGINALS BENEFIT ACCOUNT (ABA) FUNDING RECOMMENDATION: 
DJIGARDABA ENTERPRISE ABORIGINAL CORPORATION FOR PART 
ACQUISITION OF KAKADU TOURISM (GLC) PTY LIMITED ACN 087 366 366 
AND GAGUDJU LODGE COOINDA TRUST

Recommendations - that you:

1. Agree, as decision maker, you are aware of your obligations under the Commonwealth 
Grants Rules and Guidelines (CGRGs) and in the Obligations for Decision Makers 
under Relevant Legislation (ABA) document at Attachment A and are satisfied any 
agreed expenditure is a proper use of relevant money.

Agreed / Not Agreed

2. Note the recommending officer has made reasonable enquiries and managed and/or 
disclosed any conflicts of interest in relation to this proposal and the applicant in 
accordance with relevant laws and policies.

Noted

3. Agree you have no conflicts of interest relating to the proposal and the applicant (or 
have declared any conflicts of interest in the box below).

Agreed / Not Agreed

4. Approve funding Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal Corporation (ABN 46 184 296 702) 
for the total amount of $1,500,000.00 (GST exclusive) from the ABA for 2023-24 and 
2024-25 financial years for Part Acquisition of Kakadu Tourism (GLC) Pty Limited 
(ACN 087 366 366) and Gagudju Lodge Cooinda Trust as per the Project Schedule at 
Attachment B.

Approved / Not Approved

5. Execute in wet ink the Provider wet ink executed copies of the Project Schedule, Head 
Agreement, Purposes Deed and the Specific Securities Deed.  Scanned copies of these 
documents are at Attachment B, C, D and E. 

Signed / Not Signed

6. Note, Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal Corporation is not listed as ineligible to receive 
Australian Government grant funding in accordance with the National Redress Scheme 
for Institutional Child Sexual Abuse Grant Connected Policy.

Noted

7. Note that, if you consider this grant proposal should not be approved, the matter must 
be referred to the Minister for determination, together with your reasons for proposing 
the grant be declined.

Noted

NIAA 
Ms Bellenger
Mr Dyer
Mr King
Mr Hendry
Mr Qi 

Grants Policy
IASAMO
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OFFICIAL  
 2

DAVID KING Date: 21 December 2023

Comments:

Key Points:

1. This brief seeks approval of funding from the ABA for Part Acquisition of Kakadu 
Tourism (GLC) Pty Limited (ACN 087 366 366) and Gagudju Lodge Cooinda Trust, 
which is an individual activity valued at $1,500,000.00 (GST exclusive) with an Activity 
Risk Rating (ARA) of high. Under the NIAA Decision Making Policy for Administered 
Funding (Grants) Operational Guidance document you are authorised to approve ABA 
grant funding of up to $2 million for an activity with a risk rating of up to high.

2.  In the October 2022 ABA funding round, Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal Corporation 
applied for $1,500,000.00 (GST exclusive) to acquire 48% of the Gagudju Lodge Cooinda 
Hotel and Yellow Waters Cruise Business in Kakadu National Park. The application was 
assessed against the ABA selection criteria under the ABA Section 64(4) Beneficial Grant 
Guidelines and recommended for funding by the ABA Advisory Committee.

3. On 30 November 2022, the Minister approved funding of $1,500,000.00 (GST exclusive) 
and for the Agency to enter into negotiations with Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal 
Corporation (refer MS22-000532 at Attachment F).

4. The proposal represents value with relevant money because activity is achievable, viable, 
costed and well planned to deliver within the funding sought.

5. The Agency has negotiated funding of $1,500,000.00 (GST exclusive) with Djigardaba 
Enterprise Aboriginal Corporation and all specified conditions have been met. 

6. On 11 December 2023, Gerrit Wanganeen, Regional Manager, Arnhem Land and Groote 
Eylandt, approved the commitment of funding and agreed to the proposed Project 
Schedule for this project (refer EC23-001886 at Attachment G).

7. The scanned version of the Project Schedule, Head Agreement, Purposes Deed and the 
Specific Securities Deed have now been signed by Djigardaba Enterprise Aboriginal 
Corporation and returned and are provided at Attachment B, C, D and E. Djigardaba 
Enterprise Aboriginal Corporation have requested to execute the original copies of the 
Project Schedule, Head Agreement, Purposes Deed and the Specific Security Deed which 
have been supplied to your office for wet ink signature. You have authority to do so under 
Item 8 of the NIAA Financial Delegations.
• The Project Schedule provides for two milestone payments and a separate direction to 

debit will required for each one.
• In addition to the signed Project Schedule, Head Agreement, Purposes Deed and 

Specific Securities Deed, the first payment is linked to provision to the Agency of a 
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ATTACHMENTS

ATTACHMENT A OBLIGATIONS FOR DECISION MAKERS UNDER RELEVANT 
LEGISLATION (ABA)

ATTACHMENT B PROJECT SCHEDULE

ATTACHMENT C HEAD AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENT D PURPOSES DEED

ATTACHMENT E SPECIFIC SECURITIES DEED

ATTACHMENT F MS22-000532 APPROVAL TO NEGOTIATE BRIEF

ATTACHMENT G EC23-001886 DRAFT PROJECT SCHEDULE AND ATC BRIEF
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